
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


June 26, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on June 26, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Patrick Stough, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Pastor Jake Dukes, Minister to Families and Ministry Coordinator for New Hope
Baptist Church’s South Campus, to the Board.  Pastor Dukes offered the Invocation.


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Commissioner Oddo introduced several Boy Scouts from Troops 272 and 279 to the Commissioners and county
staff, and he briefly explained the work of the County to the Boy Scouts.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.



FJones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County Deputy Sheriff Brent Lonkert for winning the 2014 Law Enforcement
Officer of the Year Award.


Commander David Neibes of the American Legion, Fayette County Post 105, spoke about Officer Brent
Lonkert’s actions that led to his winning of the 2014 Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award.  The
Board recognized Officer Lonkert for winning the Law Enforcement Officer of the Year Award.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Recognition of the Starr’s Mill Economic Challenge Team for its third consecutive state
championship win.


The Board recognized the Starr’s Mill Economic Challenge Team for winning its third consecutive state
championship.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


3. Recognition of Financial Analyst Brady Every for being nominated to receive the Team Player
Award.


Commissioner David Barlow and the Board recognized Financial Analyst Brady Every for winning the Team
Player Award.  Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott also spoke about Ms. Every’s qualifications in winning
the award.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


Chairman Brown introduced four, incoming Fayette County interns to the audience.  Those interns were
John Hlas, Ashton Jones-Doherty, Khalil Coleman, and Haider Khan.


PUBLIC HEARING:


4. Consideration of Petition No. T-018-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a
reduction of the requirement of Section 110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and
Towers, in order to develop a 185-Monopole Telecommunication Tower, and to reduce the 1,000-foot
setback from an adjacent municipality to 114 feet.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings into the record and
introduced Public Hearing #4 to the Board of Commissioners.  A copy of the Introduction to Public


Hearings, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Ms. Kirsten Lurer, representing PM&A, briefed the Board by saying that the request was to reduce the
1,000-foot setback requirements to outside jurisdictions to 114 feet.  She reminded the Board that this
application was approved by the Board of Commissioners prior to the ordinance change, and that the
applicant was ready to add a second carrier to the tower. 


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 3


Commissioner Ognio asked if the City of Fayetteville had been contacted on this matter.  Mr. Frisina replied
that he had contacted Mr. Brian Wismer of the City of Fayetteville, but that the city had not replied to this
request.  


Commissioner Oddo asked why the tower was not built after the approval was first given.  Ms. Lurer replied
that she did not know the answer to that question.


Commissioner Barlow asked if there were any comments from the neighbors at the balloon test.  Ms. Lurer
replied that she was not aware of any comments or opposition to the balloon test.  


Commissioner McCarty asked if there were methods to make towers look like giant pine trees.  Ms. Lurer
replied that it was an option but that it could be counterintuitive based on location, not to mention the
additional wind-loading that prevents additional carriers.


Chairman Brown said he was on the commission to implement the 1,000-foot setback, and he explained the
reason that the 1,000-foot setback was implemented saying it was meant to prevent an antagonistic
relationship with the neighboring jurisdictions.  He said at the time the restrictions were implemented that a
variance could be allowed if there was positive feedback from the neighboring jurisdiction, but that in this
case the City of Fayetteville had not commented on this matter.


Chairman Brown moved to decline Petition No. T-018-14.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Commissioner Ognio stated that if the City of Fayetteville would give authorization that the Board would be
more than happy to approve the request, but without the authorization it would be ill-advised for the
Commission to approve this request.


Commissioner Oddo suggested that this matter was a little different since there was a need for a tower in
that location. He wondered why the tower was not built the first time it was approved.  He agreed that he
wanted a response from the city, but he considered the city’s lack of a reply as tacit approval. He stated
that he would agree to approve the petition.  Commissioner McCarty agreed with Commissioner Oddo.


The motion to decline Petition No. T-018-14, Skyway Towers, Owner, and PM&A, Agent, request for a
reduction of the requirement of Section 110-150. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers,
in order to develop a 185-Monopole Telecommunication Tower, and to reduce the 1,000-foot setback from
an adjacent municipality to 114 feet passed 3-2 with Commissioners Oddo and McCarty voting in
opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


5. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2014-13 amending the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text, and amending the Fayette County Future Land Use
Plan Map.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina asked for Public Hearing Item #6 to be considered at the
same time.  County Attorney Patrick Stough informed the Board that Public Hearing Items #5 and #6 should
be considered separately since they were advertised separately.  Chairman Brown said he would allow Mr.
Frisina to discuss the items jointly but that he would call for separate public hearings for each item.  







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 4


Mr. Frisina briefly explained the proposed changes to the Board.  He reminded the Board that this matter
was first considered after Ms. Linda Sandwich came to the Board requesting these changes in 2013.  He
told the Board that when State Route 74 was four-laned, the Georgia Department of Transportation built
sidewalks along the road, but they left a gap in the area that was proposed for change.  He informed the
Board that part of the requirement is for developing properties to build their portion of the sidewalk.  He
stated that at the end of the period, all of the sidewalks should be connected.  


Linda Sandwich:  Ms. Sandwich, who initially asked for the Land Use Plan Map change, asked how much
it would cost to install a sidewalk and if it would be her responsibility to install the sidewalk on her portion of
the property.  Mr. Frisina answered that each parcel would be required to install a sidewalk, but he did not
have the cost estimates with him at the time.  He said he would contact Ms. Sandwich and provide the
information at a later time.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2014-13 amending the Fayette
County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element Text, and amending the Fayette County Future Land Use
Plan Map.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.  Copies of the request and Resolution 2014-13, identified as “Attachment 6,” follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Consideration of a request to adopt Ordinance 2014-10 amending the County Code, Chapter 110.
Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically, Article V. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances,
Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards, Sec. 110-173,
Transportation Corridor Over Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay Zone regarding State Route 74
South.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on this request at the same time that he
briefed the Board on Public Hearing #5.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.  


Commissioner Oddo moved to adopt Ordinance 2014-10 amending the County Code, Chapter 110. Zoning
Ordinance, as amended, specifically, Article V. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation
Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards, Sec. 110-173, Transportation Corridor
Over Zone, 3. General State Route Overlay Zone regarding State Route 74 South.  Commissioners Barlow
and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of
the request and Ordinance 2014-10, identified as “Attachment 7,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


7. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which begins July 1,
2014 and ends June 30, 2015, and consideration of Resolution 2014-14 adopting the Fiscal Year
2015 budget.


County Administrator Steve Rapson gave a brief summation of the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 budget.  







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 5


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for approximately twelve minutes in opposition to various parts of the
proposed Fiscal Year 2015 budget.  Mr. McHugh left the meeting after expressing his concerns.


Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones said she was concerned about a proposed budget with a surplus as it relates to
Kenwood Park, since the park has a major erosion problem and an unkempt lawn.  She suggested that
since the County has staff with engineering degrees that are able to address the problems that they could
work to stop the erosion at the park.  She also stated that the community around Kenwood Park is
concerned that “there is a house that is not completely built.”  She stated that Phases 2 and 3 of Kenwood
Park had not been built despite money being appropriated in previous years to Kenwood Park for both
phases.   She suggested that an aquatics center could be built at Kenwood Park.  She asked the Board to
discuss additional ideas with the community for enhancing Kenwood Park.  She reminded the Board that
she mentioned having a facility named after a football player in order to generate revenues while promoting
future planning.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 budget.


Commissioner McCarty stated that he has a problem with Kenwood Park since he found it was so muddy
that his family went around the county until they found a place they could use.  He also stated that he was
totally against one item that he wanted to totally defund once authority was obtained; namely, expending
about $25,000.00 yearly for the purchase of fluoride that is put in the County’s water supply. 


Mr. Rapson responded to the concerns expressed by Mrs. Jones by saying that there was half a million
dollars in the Capital Improvements Project budget for drainage and erosion control at Kenwood Park.  He
stated that the other ideas proposed by Mrs. Jones would best be handled by going through the Fayette
County Recreation Commission.  Mr. Rapson also responded to the various concerns raised by Mr.
McHugh.  He pointed out that the county was just notified that it recently obtained AAA bond rating, and that
the County was recently notified that it was being recognized for its CAFRs for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2013.  Mr. Rapson thought it was disheartening and disrespectful that Mr. McHugh had spoken against
the staff that he once worked with, and he told the Board that Finance staff had done an outstanding job on
the proposed budget.  He agreed with Mr. McHugh’s concerns on the issue of road resurfacing and he
pointed out that Mr. McHugh gave four positive notes about the budget as well.


Chairman Brown replied to the concerns expressed by Mr. McHugh, and that the county allows people to
speak about their concerns so long as they are not repeating themselves, cursing, or throwing things.  He
pointed out that Fayette County is one of only four counties in the State of Georgia who has the AAA bond
rating, and that it was an exaggeration to think the county was falling off of a financial cliff.  He added that
Fayette County is the only county in the State that is showing “positive” on its pension fund.  


Commissioner Oddo thanked Mrs. Jones for staying at the meeting to hear the Board’s response to her
concerns.  He stated that if someone was going to comment, and that it would be great if people would stick
around and hear a reply; something Mr. McHugh has not yet done for the Board.


Mr. Rapson stated that the Board and staff listen to the comments, and some of the comments given by Mr.
McHugh have been embraced.  He said he welcomes all comments and that the more eyes see a
document, the better the document.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 6


Commissioner McCarty said he really liked the proposed Fiscal Year 2015 budget and the work that was
done in preparing it.  He said he would not change anything except for the one item he mentioned earlier.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2015 which
begins July 1, 2014 and ends June 30, 2015, and to approve Resolution 2014-14 adopting the Fiscal Year
2015 budget.  Commissioners Ognio and Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Resolution 2014-14, identified as “Attachment 8,”
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Consent Agenda Items #8-14.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed. The motion passed unanimously.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty
Company, as outlined in “Option 2,” for a period of one year, beginning July 1, 2014 and expiring
June 30, 2015, in the amount of $93,116.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract
and related documents.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to purchase a policy for property and casualty insurance from
OneBeacon, for Fiscal Year 2015, through Public Risk Underwriters, for an amount of $626,704.00,
and for the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to grant an easement to AT&T in order to install a fiber cable to
the Fayette County Public Library.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of a request from the Edgewood Subdivision Home Owners’ Association who is seeking
authorization for the use of motorized cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance
with Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 12,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to continue the maintenance agreement between Fayette
County and Motorola for the 800 MHZ ASTRO Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to
sign the renewal contract, in the amount of $505,606.29, for the term of July 1, 2014 through June
30, 2015.  Copies of the request and maintenance agreement, identified as “Attachment 13,” follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


13. Approval of the Sheriff’s decision to dispose of county property and for any monies received for the
value of the property to be returned to the Federal Seizures Funds.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 14,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


14. Approval of the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 7


OLD BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to amend Ordinance 2014-02 by
revising White Lining standards to those reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the
“Tolerance Zone” from 24 inches to 18 inches and other minor modifications.  This item was tabled
at the June 12, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. 


Chairman Brown stated that the Board had a red-line version of the ordinance under consideration on the
dais.


Mr. Matt Bergen of the Fayette County Water System briefed the Board on this request and he informed the
Board that staff did not recommend scaling back the “tolerance zone” from 24 inches to 18 inches.  He
stated that the current tolerance zone requirement is 24-inches, and that this recommendation would tell
contractors that it is okay to get six-inches closer to the utilities.  He suggested that when contractors white-
line an area, and if they are responsible, then everything would work out properly.  He said staff agreed with
all of the other changes as recommended except for the reduction of the tolerance zone.  He spoke about a
situation on Kingwood Drive last week where a contractor damaged utilities.  He said the current ordinance
is basically modeled after the Georgia Public Service Commission’s rule.  He said the ordinance was more
stringent than state regulations and that the County was allowed to go along with more stringent
requirements.  He said the damage at Kingwood Drive demonstrates the importance of a strict ordinance
since the contractor failed to white-line, failed to get a permit from Fayette County, and failed to obtain a
right-of-way permit from the Georgia Department of Transportation.  Mr. Bergen said both the County and
the Georgia Department of Transportation shut the contractor’s work down in the area.  He stated that the
contractor did not follow the plans provided by Comcast Cable and the contractor did not notify the Georgia
Department of Transportation’s Locate Services as required.  He stated that the risk imposed by the
contractor was detrimental since the work would have affected a traffic signal.  He said the contractor is in
violation of numerous state regulations, and that the staff was trying to promote safety by holding to a
stricter position on white-lining.  He concluded that there were a number of other counties that have
adopted white-lining ordinances.


Chairman Brown said he had a conversation with several utility companies who are bringing in contractors
from various parts of the state and from out of state.  He said the dilemma for the contractors is that if
someone is running lines across county jurisdictions, and that there is a moving target with regards to how
to white-line, then there are significant problems.  He said he empathized with the position of the utility
companies.  He stated that contractors should be held accountable when mistakes are made, and that
there are measures in place to take care of careless contractors.  Chairman Brown suggested that it would
not matter what the tolerance zone is since the type of contractors Mr. Bergen spoke about would not have
done white-lining work or sought the appropriate permits anyway.  He said the contractors are so negligent,
and they need to be kept from operating in the county in the future.  He concluded that there are just foolish
people in the world who will continue to do stupid things, and he hoped that they could be kept from being
licensed for the business and prevented from working in the county.


Discussion followed about differences in the red-lined version of the ordinance Mr. Bergen had compared to
the version the Board had on the dais.  It was also noted that the Section numbers indicated on the red-line
version of the ordinance needed to be amended due to recently recodifying the County Code of
Ordinances.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 8


Chairman Brown moved to approve the amendment of Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining
standards to those reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the “Tolerance Zone” from 24
inches to 18 inches and other modifications, that Section 19-73, located on page 4 of the information on the
dais be amended to Section 28-232, and that all other changes will stand as written.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Ognio stated that he agreed with Chairman Brown on this matter since there should be one
standard across the state instead of variegating standards within individual jurisdictions.  He also agreed
that people who do not white-line are breaking the law, and that while white-lining was a “pain to deal with”
it had to be done and uniformity was the key.


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner stated that the County hires competent, hard-working staff and he thought the
Board should listen to its staff instead of disregarding their concerns on this and other items.  He thanked
county staff who does the work for the county.


Chairman Brown asked staff to not take disagreements personally since the Board was only looking trying
to make sense of the issues.


The motion to approve the amendment of Ordinance 2014-02 by revising White Lining standards to those
reflected in Georgia Senate Bill 117 to include reducing the “Tolerance Zone” from 24 inches to 18 inches
and other modifications, that Section 19-73, located on page 4 of the information on the dais be amended
to Section 28-232, and that all other changes will stand as written passed unanimously.  Copies of the
request and Ordinance 2014-02, identified as “Attachment 15,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


16. Consideration of staff’s request to upgrade the current 911 Telecommunications Systems from
VESTA to VESTA 4.0, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $462,531.00.


Communications Director Cheryl Rogers asked to upgrade the current VESTA System, and that this
request is based on collaboration with the Information Systems Department.  She said the Information
Systems Department is in agreement with this request.  She said the Communications Department looked
at several available plans, but it was agreed that instead of bringing in a completely new system that the
department should upgrade its system.  Ms. Rogers explained that the upgraded system would allow staff
to use the same monitors and screens that the operators are already using; eliminating the learning curve. 
She said the upgrade would fit in with the Communication Departments strategic upgrade plan, and that the
upgrade would work with the County’s CAD System.  She said the upgrade would allow the department to
be more proactive instead of reactive, and that it would help in keeping up with the technological
expectations required from the public.  


Commissioner Barlow asked how this upgrade would interface with the software packages that are in all of
the emergency vehicles.  Ms. Rogers replied that the Communications Department uses the CAD System
to communicate with first responders in the field, but that the upgrade would integrate with the CAD
System.  She stated that the responders in the field would not actually get the phone calls, but that the
upgrade would allow the operators to post comments based on the call that comes in.  







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 9


Commissioner Ognio asked if the upgrade would allow for the addition of more operators at the
Communications Department.  Ms. Rogers replied that the upgrade was expandable, that the department
was looking to purchase ten positions for the radio room, and that the department was looking to purchase
a backup system for the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) so that the EOC could be fully functional just
like the 911 Communications Center.  She added that updates in the future would also be based on
software instead of hardware as the department is historically accustomed to.  Commissioner Ognio asked
if upgrades were available and Ms. Rogers replied that there would be upgrades available for one year. 
Commissioner Ognio asked how long the upgrade would carry the county and Ms. Rogers stated that she
thought the upgrades would carry the county for about seven to ten years.


Commissioner Barlow asked Ms. Rogers if she endorsed the proposal and Ms. Rogers replied that she was
endorsing the upgrade.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve staff’s request to upgrade the current 911 Telecommunications
Systems from VESTA to VESTA 4.0, for Fiscal Year 2015, in an amount not to exceed $462,531.00. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 16,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-15 implementing the Leak
Protection Program.


Chairman Brown stated that the Board had a red-line version of Resolution 2014-15 on the dais.


County Administrator Steve Rapson said this request was brought up at the budget workshop and was
included in the budget.  He explained it was a program where a customer would fall into the program unless
they did not want to be a part of it.  He said it was like an insurance policy where that would cover a major
leak up to $1,000.00, and that it would cost $3.00 a month on the water bill.


Commissioner Ognio asked, if a customer filled their swimming pool, if the customer could claim a major
leak and get credit.  Mr. Rapson replied that the County would do its due diligence, and that most of the
time there is a plumber with certifications that can verify a leak.  He added there were other evaluation tools
to determine if there was a legitimate leak.  It was noted that a person is to notify the Water System before
filling a swimming pool.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-15 implementing
the Leak Protection Program.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Resolution 2014-15, identified as “Attachment 17,”
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of a recommendation to amend both the Planning Commission’s compensation and
the Zoning Board of Appeal’s compensation to $75.00 per meeting with said amendments becoming
effective January 1, 2015.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 10


County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that staff was reviewing what is compensated for
the Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals, and that there was a discrepancy in
compensation between these bodies.  He said most of the other committees are governed by some extent
by the State of Georgia, but the Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals are governed by
the county.  He said the county was trying to get consistency about what is compensated to each body. 


Commissioner Ognio asked if the compensation could be limited to two meetings a month for a total of
$150 per month.  Mr. Rapson replied that the Board could make that limitation.   


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the recommendation to amend the Planning Commission’s
compensation and the Zoning Board of Appeal’s compensation to $75.00 per meeting with a maximum of
$150.00 per month, and with said amendments becoming effecting January 1, 2015.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 18,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


No one spoke under Public Comment.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Recreation Commission: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that the County had recently
advertised for two positions on the Recreation Commission, and that the County had not received applications for
the positions.  He stated that the County was re-advertising the posts.  He told the Board that if there are no
applicants at the end of this second advertisement that the matter would be brought to the Board for direction.


Development Authority Agreement: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that Peachtree City,
Fayetteville, and Tyrone have already approved the Development Authority Agreement.  He said there was a hiccup
with the Peachtree City Airport Authority since it makes it mandatory for the Airport Authority’s Chairman to be on the
Development Authority.  Chairman Brown stated that he spoke to director of the airport, and she told him that the
agreement would not be passed.  He said he asked the director to draft the agreement, pass it, and send it back
through the jurisdictions with the County being last to approve.  


Annexation Request Associated with Georgia Military College: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the
Board that the County had received an annexation request from the City of Fayetteville with regard to the Georgia
Military College.  He said the County had no bona fide objection, that the request was run by the Board, and that the
annexation would take place.


Letter to the City of Fayetteville: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that there was a letter at
the dais that he had written to Mayor Greg Clifton and the City of Fayetteville in response to how mutual and
automatic aid would be handled.  He asked the Board to review the letter, provide any edits, and for authorization to
distribute the letter.  The Board gave authorization to distribute the letter.  A copy of the letter, identified as
“Attachment 19,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 11


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Executive Session: County Attorney Patrick Stough informed the Board that there were two items of pending
litigation and the review of the June 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes for Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow stated that he volunteered at the McIntosh Trail Community Service
Board at the last meeting, and that he attended his first meeting.  He briefly spoke about the work, responsibilities,
and recent accomplishments of the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.  He stated that Fayette County is the
healthiest county in Georgia, but there is still much to improve with regards to healthy living.  He stated that
McIntosh Trail was to be commended for its work, and that he was honored to be a representative for the County. 
Commissioner Barlow also commented on how the budget has funds to restore the Historic County Courthouse.  He
recommended that as the courthouse is restored, that portions of the courthouse such as roof tiles and other similar
items, be preserved or marketed as souvenir items.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo said there were two anniversaries coming up next week.  He explained
that he was married on July 4 and on July 6, since his marriage took place in both countries.  He stated that his wife,
Pily, was watching the meeting on LiveStream, and he wished her a Happy Anniversary.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked staff who worked on the budget.  He did not think people
understood what goes into something as complicated as a budget, and that staff did a fabulous job.  He also
congratulated Commissioner Oddo on his anniversary.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty hoped for Pily to come back home.  He thanked staff and said the
county had the greatest staff.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Two Items of Pending Litigation and Review of the June 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman
Brown moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss two items of pending litigation and for the review of the
June 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously. 


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:50 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:08 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to return to Official
Session and for the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as
“Attachment 20,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


June 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the June 12, 2014 Executive
Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.







Minutes
June 26, 2014
Page Number 12


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:09 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10th day of July 2014.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


July 10, 2014


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 2014 All-County Girl’s Soccer Team.


2. Recognition of the 2014 All South Metro Boys Lacrosse Team.


3. Recognition of the 2014 Girl’s All County Lacrosse Team.


4. Presentation of two Government Finance Officers Association Certificates


of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fayette County’s


and Fayette County’s Water System’s Comprehensive Annual Financial


Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.


PUBLIC HEARING:


CONSENT AGENDA:


5. Approval of the June 26, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Ordinance 2014-11 amending the


Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Article VI of Chapter 19 pertaining to


Stormwater Services, and consideration of the Stormwater Utility Credit


Technical Manual and the Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule.


7. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt a Joint Resolution


between Fayette County, Georgia and the City of Peachtree City, Georgia


for issues related to Lake Peachtree.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
July 10, 2014
Page Number 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


New Business #7


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt a Joint Resolution between Fayette County, Georgia and the City of Peachtree City, 


Georgia for issues related to Lake Peachtree.


Mr. Andrew Welch, of Smith, Welch, Webb & White, attorney for Peachtree City, created a Draft Joint Resolution and presented it to 


Fayette County Attorney Dennis Davenport. 


 


The County Attorney has asked for time to review the Draft Joint Resolution and to offer any necessary amendments. 


 


Due to time constraints, the Draft Joint Resolution was not available at the time the Agenda was published.  The Draft Joint Resolution 


will be provided for the Board, on the dais, for the July 10, 2014 Commission Meeting. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt a Joint Resolution between Fayette County, Georgia and the City of Peachtree City, Georgia 


for issues related to Lake Peachtree.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Yes


Thursday, July 10, 2014 New Business








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #1


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Girls Soccer Team.


The 2014 All-County Girls Soccer Team is made up of the high school soccer teams in Fayette County.  During the 2014 soccer season, 


four of the six high schools qualified for the state playoffs, three reached the quarterfinals, two made the finals, and one was the 


champion.   


 


Among the teams being honored is the Girls Player of the Year, Molly Moroney of Starr's Mill High School.  The Coach of the Year goes 


to Marcia Clark of McIntosh High School. 


 


Christopher Dunn, Sports Editor, Fayette Daily News, will be present to assist with the recognitions.


Recognition of the 2014 All-County Girls Soccer Team.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


No


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, July 10, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #2


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of the 2014 All South Metro Boys Lacrosse Team.


The 2014 All South Metro Boys Lacrosse Team is comprised of boys from the Fayette and Coweta County high school squads.  Among 


the boys teams, McIntosh and East Coweta were the lone local playoff qualifiers.  The All South Metro Boys Player of the Year honors go 


to Hank Morgan of McIntosh High School.  Additionally, McIntosh High School's Tom Hill was selected as the All-South Metro Boys 


Lacrosse Coach of the Year.


Recognition of the 2014 All South Metro Boys Lacrosse Team.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, July 10, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Presentation/Recognition #3


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of the 2014 Girls All County Lacrosse Team.


The Girls All County Lacrosse Team is made up of girls from McIntosh, Starr's Mill, and Whitewater High School.  Both McIntosh and 


Starr's Mill High Schools made the playoffs with the Lady Chiefs advancing to the second round.  While all the girls played great, in the 


end, Ms. Meghan Mills of Starr's Mill was named All-County Girls Player of the year.  Ms. Mills tallied 59 goals, 14 assists, and 43 ground 


balls in route to All-State honors. 


 


Recognition of the 2014 Girls All County Lacrosse Team.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, July 10, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Environmental Management Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2014-11 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Article VI of Chapter 19 


pertaining to Stormwater Services, and consideration of the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual and the Stormwater Utility Rate 


Schedule.                           


The proposed revisions to the Stormwater Management Ordinance and the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual resulted from the 


public comments received during a series of townhall meetings conducted in early 2013.  These amendments refocus the overall use of 


utility enterprise funds from a stormwater management function to an exclusively stormwater operations and maintenance function. 


 


Amendments proposed in this ordinance include:  1)  Defining stormwater services and stormwater systems, and 2)  Establishing a rate-


fee schedule. 


 


Revisions proposed in the Stormwater Utility Technical Manual include:  1)  Removing credits for rain barrel, watershed stewardship and 


septic tank maintenance, 2) Adding credits for 10 and 15-acre lots and residential ponds, and 3)  Changing no-impact parcel status to low 


impact parcel status. 


 


A red-line version of the ordinance denoting proposed changes is located on pages 1-21 of the supporting document.  The proposed, 


final form of Ordinance 2014-11 (second document) is located on pages 1-11.  The proposed Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 


(third document) is 17 pages long.  The proposed Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule is located on the last page of the backup material.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2014-11 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Article VI of Chapter 19 


pertaining to Stormwater Services, and approval of the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual and the Stormwater Utility Rate 


Schedule.   


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, November 14, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Thursday, July 10, 2014 New Business



FJones

Typewritten Text

New Business #6







 


 


 


RED-LINED 


ORDINANCE 







Original Ordinance Page 1 
 


 
 


Sec. 19-96. Findings. 


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia makes the following findings:  


(b) (a) An independent professional engineering and financing analyses as prepared by 


Integrated Science and Engineering, Inc. properly assesses and defines the stormwater 


management problems, needs, goals, program priorities, and funding opportunities of 


unincorporated Fayette County.   


(c)(b) Given the problems, needs, goals, program priorities, and funding opportunities identified 


in the professional engineering and financing analyses, it is appropriate to authorize the 


formation of an organizational and accounting entity dedicated specifically to the management, 


maintenance, protection, control, regulation, use, and enhancement of stormwater systems in 


unincorporated Fayette in concert with other water resource management programs.  


(d)(c) Stormwater managementservices are is applicable and needed throughout the 


unincorporated boundaries of Fayette County. While specific service and facility demands may 


differ from area to area at any given time, a stormwater management service area encompassing 


all lands and water bodies within the unincorporated boundaries of Fayette County is consistent 


with present and future needs of the community.  


(e)(d) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County include, but are not limited to, 


protecting the public health, safety, and welfare. Provision of sStormwater management 


programs and facilities renders and/or results in both service and benefit tobenefits all 


properties, property owners, citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety of ways as 


identified in the professional engineering and financial analyses. The service and benefit 


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets
or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 2 
 


rendered or resulting from provision of stormwater management systems and facilitiesThese 


benefits may differ depending on many factors and considerations, including but not limited to 


location, demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater systems and programs, and risk 


exposure.  


(f)(e) Fayette County presently owns and operates stormwater management systems and 


facilities developed over many years. Future usefulness of existing stormwater systems owned 


and operated by the County, and of additions and improvements thereto, rests on the ability of 


the County toTo effectively and efficiently manage, protect, control, regulate, use, and enhance 


stormwaterthese systems and facilities in the County in concert with management of other 


water resources in the County. In order to do so, the County must haveis obligated to have 


adequate and stable funding for its stormwater management operating and capital investment 


needs. 


(g)(f) The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that aA stormwater utility 


provides the most practical and appropriate means of properly delivering and fundingproviding 


stormwater management services in unincorporated Fayette County. 


(h)(g) An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities can be 


provided by adopting a schedule of service charges upon properties that is related to the burden 


of stormwater quality control service requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the 


County. Such schedule of service charges can be complemented by other funding methods 


which address specific needs, including but not limited to, allocations of special purpose local 


option sales taxes to stormwater drainage improvement projects. A service charge credit is an 


appropriate means of adjusting service charges in recognition that private stormwater systems 







Original Ordinance Page 3 
 


and/or actions can effectively reduce or eliminate the burden of stormwater quantity and quality 


control service requirements and costs that a property or properties pose for the County. 


Impervious area is the most important factor influencing stormwater service requirements and 


costs posed by properties throughout the County, and therefore is an appropriate parameter for 


calculating stormwater service charges and associated creditsfees are calculated. In addition, 


the value to the stormwater utility of certain actions and practices performed by property 


owners and other stormwater utility customers may be recognized by credits based on other 


factors, including but not limited to, the avoided cost of public information and education 


realized by the utility when public information and education about stormwater management is 


provided by the public school system.  Credits may be available as provided herein.  


(i)(h) A schedule of stormwater utility user fee charges based on the area of impervious surface 


located on each improved property is the most appropriate and equitable means of allocating 


the cost of stormwater management services throughout the County. Such user fee charges may 


be complemented by other types of charges which address specific needs, including, but not 


limited to, special service fees, special assessments, revenue bonds, use of proceeds from 


special purpose local option sales taxes and other forms of revenue, as deemed appropriate by 


the Board of Commissioners.The existence of privately-owned and –maintained systems that 


reduce or otherwise mitigate the cost of providing stormwater services can be taken into 


account to reduce the user fee.  


(j) The existence of privately owned and maintained on-site or off-site systems, facilities, 


activities or assets that reduce or otherwise mitigate the impact of a particular property on the 


Stormwater Utility’s cost of providing stormwater management services and/or stormwater 


management systems and facilities, can be taken into account to reduce the user fee charge on 


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 4 
 


that property in the form of a credit, and such credit should be conditioned upon continuing 


provision of such services, systems, facilities, activities or assets in a manner complying with 


the standards and codes as determined by the Stormwater Utility Manager. 


(k)(i) It is imperative that the proceeds from allStormwater utility user feefees charges for 


stormwater management services, systems or facilities, together with any other revenues raised 


or otherwise allocated specifically to stormwater management services, systems or 


facilities,shall be dedicated solely to stormwater services as provided hereinthose purposes, and 


such proceeds of user fee charges and revenues shall therefore be deposited into the enterprise 


accounting fund of the Stormwater Utility and shall remain in that fund and be dispersed only 


for stormwater management capital, operating and non-operating costs, lease payments and 


debt service of bonds or other indebtedness for stormwater management purposes. 


Sec. 19-97.   Definitions. 


Except as specifically defined in this chapter, all words used in this title have their 


customary dictionary definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are 


defined as follows:   


(a) County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia. 


(b) Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater uUser fFee 


charge in recognition of a customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that a 


dDeveloped pProperty has on the County’s sStormwater management sSystems, and/or the 


efforts of a customer to offset the County’s cost for implementation of the stormwater 


management program activities that include, but not limited to, public education, watershed 


stewardship, etc.  


County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes 


Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0",


First line:  0", Outline numbered + Level: 5 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +


Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Indent at: 


1.25", Tab stops: Not at  0.35"


Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Not Italic


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black


Formatted: Font color: Black







Original Ordinance Page 5 
 


of this ordinance may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County or the County. 


(c) Developed LandProperty. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, 


compaction, construction of structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that 


hydrologic response of the property is changed from that which would occur in the natural 


undeveloped conditioncontaining 1,000 square feet or more of Impervious Area.  


Fayette County Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Manual. A technical guidance manual 


published by Fayette County that defines user fee credits available to private and public entities 


that undertake specific stormwater management activities and criteria and procedures for 


customers to secure and maintain stormwater user fee credit(s).  The ‘Fayette County 


Stormwater Utility User Fee Credit Manual’ is hereby incorporated by reference. 


(d) Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual 


published by the Atlanta Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management 


Manual’ is hereby incorporated by reference into this ordinance. 


 
(e) Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Man-made Aareas or surfaces that prevent or impede 


the infiltration of stormwater into the soil, e.g., rooftops; .  The following types of surfaces will 


be considered "impervious" for purposes of the stormwater utility: the projected area of 


buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved areas; and all driveways and parking 


areasimproved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or 


plastic coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of 


stormwater runoff or that change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to 


development. 


Hydrologic Response. The manner and means whereby stormwater collects, remains, infiltrates, 


Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0",
First line:  0", Line spacing:  Double, Outline


numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b,


c, … + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at:  0" + Indent at:  0.05", Tab stops: Not at 


0.35"


Formatted: List Paragraph, Line spacing: 
Double, Outline numbered + Level: 2 +


Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 2 +


Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at: 


0.05"


Formatted: List Paragraph, Line spacing: 


Double, Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 2 +


Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0" + Indent at: 


0.05"







Original Ordinance Page 6 
 


and is conveyed from a property. It is dependent on several factors including, but not limited to, 


the presence of impervious area; the size, shape, topographic, vegetative, and geologic 


conditions of a property; antecedent moisture conditions; and groundwater conditions on a 


property. 


Non-Single Family Residential Property.  Developed property that consists of various non-


residential land uses including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, 


office/institutional, public, transportation, industrial, manufacturing and storage buildings and 


facilities; (2) parking lots, parks, public and private schools, universities and hospitals; (3) 


streets, roads, water and wastewater treatment plants; and (4) any other form of use not 


specifically defined as a single family residential property. 


Service Charge.  A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, reflective of the 


service provided by Fayette County Stormwater Utility. Service charges are based on 


measurable parameters which influence the stormwater utility's cost of providing services and 


facilities, with the most important factor being the amount of impervious area on each parcel of 


land, which is the user-rate fee charge. The use of impervious area as a service charge rate 


parameter shall not preclude the use of other parameters to determine the impact on the 


stormwater utility's cost of providing stormwater management services and facilities. 


Stormwater service charges may also include special charges to the owners of particular 


properties for services or facilities uniquely related to stormwater management of that property, 


including but not limited to charges for development plan review, inspection of development 


projects and on-site stormwater control systems, and enhanced level of stormwater services 


above those normally provided by the County. 







Original Ordinance Page 7 
 


Single-Family Residential Property.  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with 


one (1) or more bedrooms, a bathroom, and cooling facilities, designed for occupancy by one or 


more persons, regardless of relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may 


be classified as single-family residential even if supplemental detached dwelling units are 


present that include but not limited to garages, carports, storage buildings and barns. 


Stormwater Customers.  All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or benefiting from 


the utility's acquisition, management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public 


stormwater management systems and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater 


systems, facilities, and activities related thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will 


ultimately be served or benefited as a result of the stormwater management program. 


Stormwater Drainage Influence Zone.  Areas lying downstream of a culvert, or other stormwater 


management conveyance system. On the downstream side of the conveyance system, the 


stormwater influence zone will extend for a length of six times the diameter (or width) of the 


culvert from which runoff is being discharged (Field Manual for Erosion and Sediment Control 


in Georgia, Third Edition, pg. 99), and within the horizontal limits set forth in the 


aforementioned field manual. For example, if a 48-inch diameter culvert is discharging to a 


private property, the stormwater drainage influence zone shall extend 24 feet (six times 48 


inches) from the end of the culvert and for the specified width (i.e. typically the width of the 


creek). The County Stormwater Utility may perform maintenance and/or capital construction 


activities only within that portion of the public water influence zone which the County has an 


ownership interest in, or for which a dedicated easement has been granted to, and accepted by 


the County for such purpose. 







Original Ordinance Page 8 
 


(f) Stormwater Drainage Systems.  All infrastructure, natural or otherwise, used for collecting 


and/or conveying stormwater, e.g., A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that 


includes inlets, street and roadway gutters,culverts, ditches, small channels, swales, etc and 


underground piping systems. 


(g) Stormwater Management Services.   All sServices provided by theFayette County that 


relate to the: 


1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette 


County Stormwater Management SystemCalculation and collection of User Fees; 


2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage 


systemsDevelopment and maintenance of a Stormwater Systems Database; 


3. Regulation of the use of stormwater management services and systemsRepair, 


replacement and improvement of County-owned Stormwater Systems; and, 


4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and 


permit requirementsAssessment, prioritization and implementation of public stormwater 


projects; and 


4.5.Performance of supporting administrative and technical functions. 


Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the 


quantity thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, 


facilities, operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) 


and environmental quality (pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, 


creeks, lakes, ponds, and reservoirs through improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding 


of plants, works, instrumentalities and properties used or useful in the collection, retention, 







Original Ordinance Page 9 
 


detention, and treatment of stormwater or surface water drainage.  


(h) Undeveloped LandProperty.  Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified 


to such minimal degree as to have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered 


natural state shall be deemed undeveloped. Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, 


or compacted gravel surfaces or structures which create an impervious surface that would 


prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause stormwater to collect, concentrate, or flow in a 


manner materially different than that which would occur if the land was in an unaltered natural 


state.All real property with less than 1,000 square feet of Impervious Area. 


(i) User Fee. A fee charged to a Developed Property for Stormwater Services.  The 


User Fee is a function of the rate schedule applied to the Impervious Area. 


 


Sec. 19-98. Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility withinin the Fayette County Utility Services 


which shall be responsible for stormwater management services throughout the unincorporated 


County limits, and shall provide for the management, protection, control, regulation, use, and 


enhancement of the County’s stormwater management system. Such utility shall be under the 


direction of a Stormwater Management Director.  


(b) The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish aA 


Stormwater Enterprise Fund in the County budget and accounting system,shall be established 


separate and apart from itsthe General Fund, for the purpose of dedicating and protecting all 


funding applicable to the purposes and responsibilities of the utility, including but not limited to 


rentals, rates, charges, fees, and licenses as may be established by the Board of Commissioners.  







Original Ordinance Page 10 
 


The Stormwater Enterprise Fund shall be used to provide Stormwater Services as provided 


herein.All revenues and receipts of the stormwater utility's shall be deposited promptly upon 


receipt into the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the purposes 


dedicated, and expended exclusively for purposes of the stormwater utility's, including capital 


project construction. No other funds of the County shall be deposited in the Stormwater 


Enterprise Fund or commingled with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that other 


revenues, receipts, and resources not accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, 


including, but not limited to, grants, transfers of County funds, loans, and bond proceeds may 


be combined with and applied to stormwater management as deemed appropriate by the Board 


of Commissioners, upon recommendation of the County Administrator. 


 


Sec. 19-99. Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility. 


(a) The sStormwater uUtility: shall be responsible for stormwater management throughout the 


unincorporated limits of Fayette County government. The utility shall provide for the 


conservation, management, protection, control, use, and enhancement of stormwater through 


planning, acquisition, construction, installation, management, operation, maintenance, 


regulation, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater drainage systems to collect, 


control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and treat stormwater and through regulation of 


stormwater management systems on private property. It shall be the long-term objective of the 


County to provide a comparable and consistent level of stormwater service to similarly situated 


properties throughout the service area.  


(b) The County owns or has legal access for purposes of operation, maintenance and 


improvements to those segments of the Fayette County Stormwater Management System that:  


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 11 
 


(1) Are located within public streets, rights-of-way, and easements; 


(2) Are subject to easements, rights-of-entry, rights-of-access, rights-of-use, or other permanent 


provisions for adequate access for operation, maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater 


drainage systems; or, 


(3) Are located on public lands to which the County has adequate access for operation, 


maintenance, and/or improvement of stormwater drainage systems and facilities.  


(c) Operation and maintenance of stormwater management systems located on private property 


or public property not owned by Fayette County and for which there has been no public 


dedication and acceptance of such systems and/or facilities for operation, maintenance, and/or 


improvement of the systems and facilities shall be and remain the legal responsibility of the 


property owner, or its occupant, except as that responsibility may be otherwise affected by the 


laws of the State of Georgia and/or the United States of America.  


 It is the intent of this ordinance to protect the public health, safety and general welfare of 


all properties and persons in general, but not to create any special duty or relationship with any 


individual person or to any specified property within or without the boundaries of Fayette 


County. Fayette County expressly reserves the right to assert all available immunities and 


defenses in any action seeking to impose monetary damages upon the County, its officers, 


employees and agents arising out of any alleged failure or breach of duty or relationship as may 


now exist or hereafter be created. To the extent any permit, plan approval, inspection or similar 


act is required by the County as a condition precedent to any activity by or upon property not 


owned by the County, pursuant to this or any other regulatory ordinance, regulation or rule of 


the County or under Federal or State law, the issuance of such permit, plan approval, or 


inspection shall not be deemed to constitute a warranty, express or implied, nor shall afford the 


Formatted:  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 12 
 


basis for any action, including any action based on failure to permit or negligent issuance of a 


permit, seeking the imposition of money damages against the County, its officers, employees or 


agents. 


(1) Calculate and collect User Fees. 


(2) Develop and maintain a database of public (i.e., County-owned) and private 


Stormwater Systems. 


(3) Fund the repair, replacement and/or improvement of County-owned Stormwater 


Systems. 


(4) Assess, prioritize and implement public Stormwater System repairs, replacements and 


new construction projects. 


(d)(5) Provide supporting administrative and technical functions (e.g., training). 


These services may be provided in conjunction with other Fayette County Departments (e.g., 


Public Works), the use of private consultants and contractors, or other similar means. 


  


Sec. 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods. 


The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by the 


County on behalf of all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law 


places necessary and appropriate obligations on private property owners as well.  The 


sStormwater uUtility may provide for inspection ofinspect private stormwater drainage systems 


and/or facilities to ascertain that the stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities are 


functioning as designed and approved by the Countyproperly. 


(a) All property owners of improved property within the incorporated areas of unincorporated 


Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  0.5",


Tab stops: Not at  0.35"







Original Ordinance Page 13 
 


Fayette County shall provide, manage, maintain, and operate on-site sStormwater management 


sSystems shall be sufficient to collect, convey, detain, and discharge stormwater runoff in a 


safe manner consistent with all applicable County development regulations, ordinances, and 


State and Federal laws. Any failure to meet this obligation shall constitute a violation of this 


article and be subject to citation and prosecution in the Fayette County Municipal Court. Each 


day such violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, subject to the penalties set forth in 


Section? of the Code of the Fayette County. 


(b) The County shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of this ordinance, for its 


designated officers and employees to enter upon private and public property owned by entities 


other than the County, upon reasonable notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the property and 


conduct surveys and engineering tests thereon in order to assure compliance. 


(c)(b) If determined by the Stormwater Management Department, undocumented 


drainageStormwater sSystems, located on private property that are connected to the County’s 


sStormwater drainage sSystems, shall be permitted and improved by the property owner to 


ensure proper function to the public systemproperly operated and maintained by the respective 


property owner. This determination may be based upon on the severity of stormwater problems, 


current or potential damage to the publicly-owned stormwater management system and 


potential hazards to the public health, safety and welfare. 


(d) In the event a public nuisance is deemed to exist by the Stormwater Management 


Department, the County may elect to sue in the Superior Court of Fayette County to abate such 


nuisance. In the event a public nuisance is found by the court to exist, which the property owner 


fails to abate within such reasonable time as allowed by the Superior Court, the County may 


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets
or numbering


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 14 
 


enter upon the property and cause work as is reasonably necessary to be performed, with the 


actual cost thereof assessed against the property owner in the same manner as a tax levied 


against the property. From date of filing of such abatement action, the County shall have lien 


rights which may be perfected, after judgment, by filing a notice of lien on the general execution 


docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County. 


(e) Any failure to meet the obligations set forth in this Ordinance shall constitute a nuisance 


and be subject to an abatement action filed by the County in the ? Court. In the event a public 


nuisance is found by the Court to exist, which the owner fails to properly abate within such 


reasonable time as allowed by the Court, the County may enter upon the property and cause 


such work as is reasonably necessary to be performed. The actual cost thereof shall be assessed 


against the owner in the same manner as a tax levied against the property. 


(f) The County shall have lien rights from the date of the filing of the abatement action by the 


County, and said lien rights may be perfected through: 


(1) A judgment; and, 


(2) The filing of a writ of fieri facias against all property of the person or entity against whom 


the assessment was made. Upon issuance of said fi. fa., and forwarding of same to the Sheriff, 


the Sheriff shall be authorized pursuant to Georgia law to levy same upon the property of the 


owner to satisfy the amount due on the judgment.  


These enforcement methods shall be perfected by filing a notice of lien on the General 


Execution Docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County. A fi. fa. issued by any court in the 


State of Georgia can be recorded on the General Execution Docket of the Superior Court of any 


other county in the state in which the owner possesses property. When the execution has been 


Formatted:  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 15 
 


entered upon the docket, the lien shall date from such entry. 


State law reference — O.C.G.A. § 9-12-81(b). 


 


Sec. 19-101. Stormwater Service Charges. 
 
(a) The sStormwater management uUtility shall recover the cost of providing sStormwater 


sServices and facilities by imposing a stormwater uUser fFee on all dDeveloped pProperties 


within the service area in a fair and equitable manner. The sStormwater management uUtility 


shall apportion the cost of delivering sStormwater sServices to all developed 


propertiesstormwater customers based on the demand the property places on the County's 


sStormwater management program and the stormwater services provided by the CountySystem. 


 
It shall be the goal of the Board of Commissioners to establish stormwater user fee rates that are 


fair, equitable and reasonable, and together with other funding sources available to the Fayette 


County sStormwater management utility, such as special service fees and charges deemed 


appropriate by the Board of Commissioners to customers for services, systems, and/or facilities 


related to stormwater management (e.g. credit application fees, plan review fees, development 


inspection fees, regulatory compliance inspection fees, special assessments and other fees 


related to provision of stormwater management services), are sufficient to support the cost of the 


stormwater management services, including, but not limited to, the payment of principal and 


interest on debt obligations, lease payments, operating expenses, capital outlays, non-operating 


expenses, provisions for prudent reserves and other costs as deemed appropriate by the County. 


 
(b) User Fee Rate. The basis for calculation of the stormwater uUser fFee rate toimposed on 


all dDeveloped propertyProperties within the County is established in this article. The County 







Original Ordinance Page 16 
 


shall assign or determinebe calculated based on  the amount of iImpervious aArea and other 


pertinent factors as may be needed for the fair, reasonable and equitable allocation of the costs 


to deliver stormwater management services and to calculate the stormwater user fee charges for 


all developed properties in the Countythe utility rate schedule approved by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


(a) User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


(1) Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 1,000 square feet of 


impervious area located on the property to establish the total number of billing units for billing. 


The total square footage impervious area will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000 ft. 


increment. (Ex. A property with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall contain 1 equivalent 


runoff unit.) 


(2) Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent runoff units, because of the 


hydrologic response characteristics of these materials.  (Ex. A property with 2,000 square feet of 


gravel area shall be equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to 1 equivalent 


runoff unit.) 


(b) Calculation of Rate. The periodic stormwater user fee charges imposed on all developed 


properties shall be a rate of $0.35 per 1000 square feet of impervious surface per month. 


 


Sec. 19-102. Stormwater User-fee Billing, Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. 


(1) The stormwater user fee charge will be billed and collected as deemed most 


effective and efficient by the County. 


Formatted:  No bullets or numbering


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Line spacing: 


Double,  No bullets or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 17 
 


(2) Stormwater uUser fFees charges shall begin to accrue (date)on January 1, 2012, 


and shall be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific 


exemptions and credits may apply. A bill for stormwater user fee charges may be 


sent through the United States Postal Service or by alternative means, notifying the 


owner of the property being billed of the amount of the stormwater user fee charge, 


less credits, the date the payment is due and the date when payment is past due. 


(b) Delinquencies. 


(1)  Failure to receive a bill shall not be justification for nonpayment. Regardless of 


the party to whom the bill is initially directed, tThe owner of each dDeveloped 


pProperty subject to stormwater user fee charges as of the billing date shall be 


obligated to pay stormwateris responsible for the uUser fFee charges and any interest 


on delinquent stormwater user fee charge payments.  A late charge of ten (10%) 


percent, compounded annually, shall be assessed against the property owner for the 


unpaid balance of any Stormwater Utility User Fee that becomes delinquent in 


accordance with applicable State law.  In addition, the County shall assess all costs 


of collection, including attorney’s fees and court costs, against the property owner. 


(2) Any service charge or portion of a service charge not paid when due may be 


recovered in an action at law or equity by the County.  


(3) No lien shall be imposed for delinquent collections unless a judgment is first 


obtained from a court of competent jurisdiction. 


(4) Suits for collection shall be commenced by the County in the county of the 


owner's residence; provided, however, if the owner is not a resident of this state, suit 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Line spacing: 


Double,  No bullets or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 18 
 


may be filed in the Superior or State Court of Fayette County, Georgia. If a suit is 


instituted by the County for collection, the owner shall pay court costs, litigation 


expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County. 


(5) If suit is instituted for the collection of any fees due hereunder or for the 


enforcement of this Ordinance, the owner shall pay the court costs, litigation 


expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees associated therewith. 


  


Sec. 19-103. Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges. 


Except as provided in this section or otherwise provided by law, no public or private 


powner of Developed Property located in the incorporated area of Fayette County shall be 


exempt from the stormwater uUser fFees charges. No exception, credit, offset, or other 


reduction in stormwater uUser fFees charges shall be granted based on age, tax status, economic 


status, race, religion or other condition unrelated to the Stormwater Utility’s cost of providing 


sStormwater management sServices and facilities. 


(a) Exemptions to the stormwater user fee charges are as follows: 


(1) Railroad rights-of-way (tracks) shall be exempt from stormwater uUser fFees 


charges.  However, railroad stations, maintenance buildings, and/or other improved 


property used for railroad purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater uUser fFees 


charges. 


(2) Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) streets and rights-of-way shall be 


exempt from stormwater uUser fFees charges. This exemption is in recognition of 


routine drainage system maintenance and capital construction services undertaken by 


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5", Line


spacing:  Double







Original Ordinance Page 19 
 


GDOT in association with GDOT rights-of-way and road systems. However, 


maintenance buildings and/or other improved property used for GDOT purposes 


shall not be exempt from stormwater uUser fFees charges. All other State, Federal, 


and County properties are subject to the uUser fFees charges on the same basis as 


private properties. 


(3) Fayette County-owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from stormwater 


uUser fFees charges. This exemption is in consideration for the County allowing the 


Stormwater Utility to use the County’s existing Stormwater Systemsstreet, curbs, 


gutters, drainage ways and ditches, storm sewers, culverts, inlets, catch basins, pipes, 


head walls and other structures, natural and man-made, that controls and diverts 


surface water for the purposes of collecting, diverting, transporting and controlling 


surface and storm waters. However, other improved property owned and used for 


County purposes shall not be exempt from stormwater uUser fFees charges. 


 


(b) Credits. The Stormwater Management DepartmentFayette County shall grant credits or 


adjustments based on the technical and procedural criteria set forth in the Stormwater Utility 


Credit Technical Manual, which shall be adopted and amended by and at the discretion of the 


Board of Commissioners as an operating policy of the Stormwater Utility.  Copies of the Credit 


Technical Manual shall be maintained by and available from the Stormwater Management 


Department.A copy of the Stormwater Utility Credit Manual is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 


and is by this reference incorporated herein. 


Sec. 19-104. Effective Date of Stormwater Charges. 


Stormwater service charges shall accrue beginning January 1, 2012, and shall be billed 


Formatted:  No bullets or numbering







Original Ordinance Page 20 
 


periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions and credits may apply. 


 


Sec. 19-105.Sec. 19-104. Appeals. 


Any customer who believes the provisions of this Article have been applied in error may appeal 


in the following manner. 


(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County StormwaterEnvironmental 


Management DirectorDepartment. In the case of service charge appeals, the appeal shall 


include a survey prepared by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer containing 


information on the total property area, the impervious surface area, and any other features or 


conditions which influence the hydrologic response of the property to rainfall events. 


 


(b) Based on the information provided, a technical review shall be conducted by the Stormwater 


Management Director of the Stormwater Utility and aA written determination will be issued 


within thirty (30)fifteen (15) days stating whether an adjustment to the service chargeUser Fee 


is appropriate and, if so, the amount of such adjustment. 


 


(c) In response to an appeal, tThe StormwaterEnvironmental Management Director may adjust 


the stormwater service chargeUser Fee applicable to a property in conformance with the 


general purpose and intent of this chapter. 


 


(d) A decision of the StormwaterEnvironmental Management Director whichthat is adverse to an 


appellant may be further appealed to the Director’s supervisor within thirty (30)County 


Administrator with five (5) days of receipt of notice of the adverse decision. Notice of the 


appeal shall be served on the Director’s supervisor by the appellant, stating the grounds for the 







Original Ordinance Page 21 
 


appeal. The Director’s supervisorCounty Administrator shall issue a written decision on the 


appeal within thirty (30)fifteen (15) days. All decisions of the Director’s supervisorCounty 


Administrator shall be served on the appellant personally or by registered or certified mail, sent 


to the billing address of the appellant.  The decision of the County Administrator shall be the 


final decision of the County. 


 


(e) If the person or entity seeking adjustment or relief from the service charge desires,An appeal 


from the decision of the Stormwater Management Director’s supervisorCounty Administrator 


may be appealed in writing to the Board of Commissionersshall lie with the Superior Court of 


Fayette County. Such appealsAny appeal to the Superior Court of Fayette County must be 


made within thirty (30) days of the decision of the Director’s supervisorCounty Administrator 


and include a written basis for the appeal. The decision of the Board of Commissioners shall be 


final. 


(f) This appeal process shall not interfere with the rights of the person or entity to seek judicial 


relief in a court of competent jurisdiction, but shall be exhausted before judicial relief is 


pursued. Any appeal to the Superior Court of Fayette County must be filed within thirty (30) 


days of the decision of the Board of Commissioners.  


(g)(f) Notices of the appeal and decisions shall be served personally or delivered by registered or 


certified mail to the address of record. 


Formatted: Line spacing:  Double,  No bullets


or numbering







 


 


 


Proposed Ordinance 


Final Form 







1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2014-11 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AMEND ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 PERTAINING TO 


STORMWATER SERVICES; TO AMEND THE REQUIREMENTS, INSPECTIONS, AND 


ENFORCEMENT METHODS OF THE STORMWATER UTILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 


AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO CLARIFY WHAT CONSTITUTES A DELINQUENCY; TO 


ASSESS A LATE CHARGE; TO MAKE GENERAL CHANGES AS TO FORM; TO 


PROECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE; AND FOR OTHER 


PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE 


AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE CODE OF 


ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT PERTAINS TO STORMWATER 


MANAGEMENT BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By redesignating all the subsections in Section 19-96 of the Fayette County 


Code of Ordinances which are currently designated as (b) through (k), so that 


when redesignated the subsections shall be designated as subsections (a) 


through (j): 


 
Section 2. By deleting subsections (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i) and (j) from Section 19-96 


pertaining to “Findings” in their entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof new 







2 
 


subsections (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i) to Section 19-96 pertaining to 


“Findings” to read as follows: 


(c) Stormwater services are applicable and needed throughout the unincorporated 


boundaries of Fayette County. While specific service demands may differ from area to area at 


any given time, a stormwater service area encompassing all lands and water bodies within the 


unincorporated boundaries of Fayette County is consistent with present and future needs of 


the community. 


(d) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County include, but are not limited 


to, protecting the public health, safety, and welfare.  Stormwater management benefits all 


properties, property owners, citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety of ways. 


These benefits may differ depending on many factors and considerations, including but not 


limited to location, demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater systems and risk 


exposure. 


(e) Fayette County presently owns and operates stormwater systems developed over many 


years. To effectively and efficiently manage these systems, the County is obligated to have 


adequate and stable funding for its stormwater management operating and capital investment 


needs. 


(f) A stormwater utility provides the most practical and appropriate means of providing 


stormwater services. 


(g)  Impervious area is the most important factor influencing stormwater service 


requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County, and therefore is the basis 


upon which fees are calculated.  Credits may be available as provided herein. 







3 
 


(h) The existence of privately owned and maintained systems that reduce or otherwise 


mitigate the cost of providing stormwater services can be taken into account to reduce the user 


fee. 


(i) Stormwater utility user fees shall be dedicated to stormwater services as provided herein. 


 


Section 3. By deleting the definitions for Credit; County; Developed Land; Fayette 


County Stormwater Utility Credit Manual; Impervious Area/Impervious Surface; Sevice 


Charge; Stormwater Customers; Stormwater Drainage System; Stormwater Services; 


Stormwater System and Undeveloped Land  from Section 19-97 in their entirety and by 


enacting in lieu thereof new definitions for Credit; County; Developed Property; Stormwater 


Utility Credit Manual; Impervious Area/Impervious Surface; User Fee; Stormwater Utility 


Services; Stormwater Systems and Undeveloped Property to Section 19-97 to read as follows: 


Section 19-97.  Definitions. 


Except as specifically defined in this chapter, all words used in this title have their customary 


dictionary definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as 


follows: 


(a) County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, 


Georgia. 


(b) Credit.  A reduction in the amount of a customer’s User Fee in recognition of 


efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that a Developed Property has on the 


County’s Stormwater Systems. 







4 
 


(c) Developed Property. All real property containing 1,000 square feet or more of 


Impervious Area. 


(d) Impervious Area/Impervious Surface. Man-made areas or surfaces that prevent 


or impede the infiltration of stormwater into the soil, e.g., rooftops; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, 


or stone-paved areas; and all driveways and parking areas. 


(e) Stormwater Systems.   All infrastructure, natural or otherwise, used for collecting 


and/or conveying stormwater, e.g., culverts, ditches, swales, etc. 


(f) Stormwater Utility Credit Manual. A technical guidance manual that defines and 


provides criteria for credits available to property owners. 


(g) Stormwater Services. Services provided by Fayette County that relate to the: 


1. Calculation and collection of User Fees; 


2. Development and maintenance of a Stormwater Systems Database; 


3. Repair, replacement and improvement of County-owned Stormwater Systems; 


4. Assessment, prioritization and implementation of public stormwater projects; and 


5. Performance of supporting administrative and technical functions. 


(h) Undeveloped Property.  All real property with less than 1,000 square feet of 


Impervious Area. 


(i) User Fee.  A fee charged to a Developed Property for Stormwater Services.  The User 


Fee is a function of the rate schedule applied to the Impervious Area. 


 


Section 4. By deleting Section 19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater 







5 
 


Utility and Enterprise Fund in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new 


Section 19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and 


Enterprise Fund to read as follows: 


Section 19-98.  Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility in Fayette County. 


(b) A Stormwater Enterprise Fund shall be established separate and apart from the 


General Fund.   The Stormwater Enterprise Fund shall be used to provide Stormwater 


Services as provided herein. 


 


Section 5. By deleting Section 19-99 pertaining to the Scope of Responsibility for the 


Stormwater Utility in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 


19-99 pertaining to the Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility to 


read as follows: 


Sec. 19-99. Scope of Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility. 


 The Stormwater Utility shall: 


(1) Calculate and collect User Fees. 


(2) Develop and maintain a database of public (i.e., County-owned) and private 


Stormwater Systems. 


(3) Fund the repair, replacement and/or improvement of County-owned 


Stormwater Systems. 







6 
 


(4) Assess, prioritize and implement public Stormwater System repairs, 


replacements and new construction projects. 


(5) Provide supporting administrative and technical functions (e.g., training). 


These services may be provided in conjunction with other Fayette County Departments (e.g., 


Public Works), the use of private consultants and contractors, or other similar means. 


 


Section 6. By deleting Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for Stormwater 


Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods in its entirety and by enacting 


in lieu thereof a new Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for 


Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and 


Enforcement Methods. 


 The Stormwater Utility may inspect private stormwater drainage systems to ascertain 


that the stormwater drainage systems are functioning properly. 


(a) Stormwater Systems shall be sufficient to collect, convey, detain, and discharge 


stormwater runoff in a safe manner consistent with all applicable County development 


regulations, ordinances, and State and Federal laws. 


(b) Stormwater Systems that are connected to the County’s Stormwater Systems shall be 


properly operated and maintained by the respective property owner. 


 







7 
 


Section 7. By deleting Section 19-101 pertaining to Stormwater Service Charges in its 


entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 19-101 pertaining to 


Stormwater Service Charges to read as follows: 


Section 19-101. Stormwater User Fees. 


(a) The Stormwater Utility shall recover the cost of providing Stormwater Services by 


imposing a User Fee on all Developed Properties. The Stormwater Utility shall apportion the 


cost of delivering Stormwater Services to all stormwater customers based on the demand the 


property places on the County's Stormwater System. 


(b) User Fee Rate.  The User Fee imposed on all Developed Properties shall be 


calculated based on the Impervious Area and the utility rate schedule approved by the Board 


of Commissioners. 


 


Section 8. By deleting Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee 


Billing/Collections, and Delinquencies in its entirety and by enacting in lieu 


thereof a new Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee 


Billing/Collections, and Delinquencies to read as follows: 


Section 19-102.  Stormwater User-fee Billing, Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. User Fees shall begin to accrue on January 1, 2012, and 


shall be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions and credits 


may apply. 


(b) Delinquencies.  The owner of each Developed Property as of the billing date is 







8 
 


responsible for the User Fee.  A late charge of ten (10%) percent, compounded annually, shall 


be assessed against the property owner for the unpaid balance of any Stormwater Utility User 


Fee that becomes delinquent in accordance with applicable State law.  In addition, the County 


shall assess all costs of collection, including attorney’s fees and court costs, against the 


property owner. 


 


Section 9. By deleting Section 19-103 pertaining to Exemptions and Credits Applicable 


to Stormwater Service Charges in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a 


new to Section 19-103 pertaining to Exemptions and Credits Applicable to 


Stormwater Charges to read as follows: 


Section 19-103. Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater User Fees. 


Except as provided in this section or otherwise provided by law, no owner of 


Developed Property shall be exempt from User Fees. No credit in User Fees shall be granted 


based on age, tax status, economic status, race, religion or other condition unrelated to the 


Stormwater Utility’s cost of providing Stormwater Services. 


(a) Exemptions: 


(1) Railroad rights-of-way (tracks) shall be exempt from User Fees.  However, 


railroad stations, maintenance buildings, and/or other improved property used for 


railroad purposes shall not be exempt from User Fees. 


(2) Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) streets and rights-of-way shall 


be exempt from User Fees. This exemption is in recognition of routine drainage 


system maintenance and capital construction services undertaken by GDOT in 







9 
 


association with GDOT rights-of-way and road systems. However, maintenance 


buildings and/or other improved property used for GDOT purposes shall not be 


exempt from User Fees. All other State, Federal, and County properties are subject to 


the User Fs on the same basis as private properties. 


(3) Fayette County-owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from User Fees. This 


exemption is in consideration for the County allowing the Stormwater Utility to use the 


County’s existing Stormwater Systems.  However, other improved property owned and used 


for County purposes shall not be exempt from User Fees. 


 


(b) Credits. Fayette County shall grant credits based on the criteria set forth in the 


Stormwater Utility Credit Manual.  A copy of the Stormwater Utility Credit Manual is 


attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is by this reference incorporated herein. 


 
 


Section 10. By deleting Section 19-105 pertaining to Appeals in its entirety and by 


enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 19-105 pertaining to Appeals to read as follows: 


 


Sec. 19-105. Appeals.  


(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Environmental 


Management Department. 


(b) A written determination will be issued within fifteen (15) days stating whether an 


adjustment to the service charge is appropriate and, if so, the amount of the adjustment. 


(c) The Environmental Management Director may adjust the User Fee applicable to a 


property in conformance with the general purpose and intent of this chapter. 







10 
 


 


(d) A decision of the Environmental Management Director that is adverse to an appellant 


may be further appealed to the County Administrator within five (5) days of receipt of notice 


of the adverse decision.  The County Administrator shall issue a written decision on the 


appeal within fifteen (15) days.  All decisions of the County Administrator shall be served on 


the appellant personally or by registered or certified mail, sent to the billing address of the 


appellant.  The decision of the County Administrator shall be the final decision of the County. 


(e) An appeal from the decision of the County Administrator shall lie with the Superior 


Court of Fayette County.  Any appeal to the Superior Court of Fayette County must be filed 


within thirty (30) days of the decision of the County Administrator. 


 


Section 11.  Should any word, phrase or sentence of this Ordinance be deemed 


unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is the intent of the 


Board of Commissioners that such unconstitutional parts shall be severed from 


this Ordinance and this Ordinance will continue to be in force and effect as if 


such unconstitutional parts had never been a part of this Ordinance. 


 
 


Section 12. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 


 
 


Section 13. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be _____________________. 


 
 







11 
 


SO ORDAINED this ___ day of _________________, 2014. 
 
  


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF 


COMMISSIONERS 


 
 
 
 By:____________________________________
__ 


STEVE BROWN, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 


 
 
 
______________________________ 
Floyd Jones, Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
County Attorney 







 


 


 


Proposed 


Stormwater Utility 


Credit Manual 


 







 


Stormwater Utility Credit Manual 


July 2014 







2 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION  
Stormwater Utility user fee credits maybe given to eligible property owners who maintain 
stormwater best management practices. The cumulative effect of these best management practices 
are intended to reduce demand and impact on Fayette County stormwater services, reduce 
flooding, and provide cleaner water resources for Fayette County.  


Credits, when applied to the customer’s account, will reduce the customer’s user fee amount. 
These credits will be reviewed on a periodic basis by the County to insure customer compliance 
with the Stormwater Utility Credit Manual eligibility requirements. 


Credit applications for existing facilities may be submitted at any time.  All credits must be applied 
for 90 days prior to the next billing cycle.  Credit applications for new construction or 
redevelopment may be submitted once the best management practices are in place and approved 
by the County. Refer to Section 19-103 of the Fayette County Stormwater Services Ordinance for 
additional guidance and requirements pertaining to stormwater user fee credits.  


Summary of Stormwater User Fee Credits  
Table 1 summarizes user fee credits available to Stormwater Utility customers.  The maximum 
user fee credit that a customer account can receive is 90% for no-impact parcels and 50% for all 
other parcels. Section 4 details each credit and eligibility requirements.  Credits must be renewed 
after the term expiration period except for those credits that are automatically applied to all 
low-impact and no-impact parcels. Credits will not be applied to accounts with past-due amounts. 


Table 1- Stormwater User Fee Credit Summary 


Stormwater User Fee Credit  Credit Amount 
Residential Environmental Technology  10 % 
2 acre Parcel 10 % 
5 Acre Parcel 15 % 
10 acre Parcel 20% 
15 acre Parcel 25% 
No-impact Parcel 90% 
Residential Pond 10% 


Natural Area Preservation 
1% for each %  


protected up to 20% 


  UNIFIED STORMWATER SIZING CRITERIA 
 Water Quality  10% 


Channel Protection 10% 
Overbank Flood Protection 10% 


Extreme Flood Protection 10% 


 







3 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS  


Except as specifically defined in this manual, all words used in this title have their customary 
dictionary definitions. For the purpose of this document, certain words or terms used are 
defined as follows:   


County.  The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia. 
 
Credit.


Developed Property.  All real property containing 1,000 square feet or more of Impervious 
Area. 


  A reduction in the amount of a customer’s User Fee in recognition of efforts to 
mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that a Developed Property has on the County’s 
Stormwater Systems. 


 
Georgia Stormwater Management Manual.


Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Man-made areas or surfaces that prevent or impede 
the infiltration of stormwater into the soil, e.g., rooftops;  asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or 
stone-paved areas; and all driveways and parking areas. 


  A stormwater technical guidance manual 
published by the Atlanta Regional Commission.   


Stormwater Systems.  All infrastructure, natural or otherwise, used for collecting and/or 
conveying stormwater, e.g., culverts, ditches, swales, etc. 


Stormwater Utility Credit Manual.  A technical guidance manual that defines and provides 
criteria for credits available to property owners. 


Stormwater Services.  Services provided by Fayette County that relates to the: 
1. Calculation and collection of User Fees; 
2. Development and maintenance of a Stormwater Systems Database; 
3. Repair, replacement and improvement of County-owned Stormwater Systems; 
4. Assessment, prioritization and implementation of public stormwater projects; 


and, 
5. Performance of supporting administrative and technical functions. 


 
Undeveloped Property.
 


  All real property with less than 1,000 square feet of Impervious Area. 


User Fee.  A fee charged to a Developed Property for Stormwater Services.  The User Fee is a 
function of the rate schedule applied to the Impervious Area.







4 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 3 - STORMWATER CREDIT APPLICATION PROCESS  


The application process for a stormwater user fee credit is as follows: 


1. The customer shall review this manual (online at www.fayettecountyga.gov or obtain a copy 
from the Fayette County Environmental Management Department) to determine if a credit 
is applicable to their property. 
 


2. The customer shall submit a completed application that includes: 
 


(1)  Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form; and, 
(2)  credit-specific application form and required documentation.  


These forms are contained in Appendix A. 


3. Effective upon adoption of this manual by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, the 
County will review the application package and notify the customer if the request is 
approved or denied within 30 days of receipt of the completed application.  Incomplete 
application packages will not be considered by the County and will be returned to the 
customer for completion and/or revision.   
 


4. If the credit application is approved, the County will apply the stormwater user fee credit to 
the next customer billing cycle.   
 


5. Once approved, the County may choose to conduct an onsite inspection of the applicant’s 
property to ensure all credit eligibility requirements are met.   
 


  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/�





5 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 4 – STORMWATER USER FEE CREDITS 


RESIDENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL TECHNOLOGY      


Credit Factor: 10% 


Credit Duration: 3 Years 


Requirements: 


All residential environmental technologies shall be designed using the Georgia Stormwater 
Management Manual (http://www.atlantaregional.com/environment/georgia-stormwater-manual); 
the Etowah Habitat Conservation Plan Runoff Limits Manual (http://www.etowahhcp.org), or any 
best management practice or manual found at http://www.lowimpactdevelopment.org 


The customer shall continue to maintain the residential environmental technology for the full credit 
duration.   


Examples: 


Tree Pit Bioretention areas, Cisterns, Rain 
Gardens, Pervious Pavements, etc.. 



http://www.atlantaregional.com/environment/georgia-stormwater-manual�

http://www.etowahhcp.org/�

http://www.lowimpactdevelopment.org/�





6 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


LOW IMPACT PARCELS          


Credit Factor: 2 Acre – 10%, 5 Acre – 15%, 10 Acre – 20%, 15 Acre – 25% 


Credit Duration: Continual (unless the account is delinquent) 


Requirements:  
 
Parcel must have less than 10% impervious area. 


Example:   







7 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


NO-IMPACT PARCEL           


Credit Factor: 90% 


Credit Duration: Continual  


Requirements:  


A property or site that does not directly or indirectly contribute stormwater runoff to the County’s 
public drainage system and/or does not discharge to a Water Supply Watershed (defined by Rules 
of Georgia Department of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division Chapter 391-3-16 
Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria) may be eligible for a no-impact stormwater user fee 
credit. Fayette County has identified no-impact parcels and automatically applies the credit to the 
stormwater utility bill. 


Example: Stormwater drains to the Flint River downstream of the City of Griffin Water System 
intake on the Flint River. 







8 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


RESIDENTIAL POND           


Credit Factor: 10% 


Credit Duration: 1 Year 


Requirements: 


The pond must have been constructed prior to 2010 or built in accordance with all Federal, State 
and Local regulations and located entirely on a parcel with more than 2 acres. The pond’s water 
surface area must be greater than or equal to the amount of impervious area on the parcel. 


All applicants for the residential pond credit can receive information on pond and 
dam/impoundment maintenance from the Georgia Department of Natural Resources 
Environmental Protection Division ( http://epd.georgia.gov ) or copies can be obtained through the 
Fayette County Environmental Management Department.  


Example: 


 


 



http://epd.georgia.gov/�





9 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


NATURAL AREA PRESERVATION         


Credit Factor: 1% for each percent of the total parcel protected up to 20% 


Credit Duration: Easement Duration 


Requirements:  


A stormwater credit may be granted when undisturbed natural areas, over one contiguous 
acre, are conserved on a parcel, thereby retaining their pre-development hydrologic and water 
quality characteristics.  These areas include but are not limited to: 


• Federally recognized wetlands;  
• Lands containing Federally Endangered Species;  
• Undeveloped lands within stream buffers and/or floodplains; 
• Constructed stormwater wetlands;  
• Conservation Easements as granted by the Fayette County Tax Commissioner, and 
• Zoning Buffers  


The customer shall provide the County all applicable documentation or instruments demonstrating 
the amount of area officially designated as a naturally preserved area. 


Example: A 200-acre parcel contains 10 acres in a conservation easement. The credit applied would 
be 5%. 







10 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria        


Credit Factor: 10% for each criterion 


Credit Duration: 3 years 


Requirements:  


The Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria is an integrated approach to addressing stormwater runoff 
impacts associated with both water quality and quantity issues as detailed in the Georgia 
Stormwater Management Manual (www.northgeorgiawater.org/stormwater).   


In order to receive this credit the customer shall meet one of the criteria and submit annual 
inspection reports demonstrating proper maintenance. The customer shall provide a hydrology 
report (or comparable document) prepared and sealed by a Georgia Professional Engineer or 
Professional Hydrologist demonstrating compliance with the following criteria: 


• Water Quality - Reduce average annual post-development TSS loadings by 80%. 
 


• Channel Protection - Provide extended detention for rainfalls up to the 24-hour, 1-year 
storm event.   


 
• Overbank Flood Protection - Provide peak discharge control of the 24-hour, 25-year storm 


event such that the post-development peak rate does not exceed the predevelopment rate 
to reduce overbank flooding. 
 


• Extreme Flood Protection - Evaluate the effects of the 24-hour, 100-year storm on the 
stormwater system, adjacent property, and downstream facilities and properties.   
 
Note:  The criteria description for each stormwater runoff treatment level is in general accordance with information published in the 
Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. 


 
The customer shall conduct maintenance and submit annual 
maintenance inspection reports.  The customer may 
reapply for the credit every three years.  If a customer is 
reapplying for the unified stormwater sizing criteria credit 
and site conditions have not changed since the original 
application, the application only needs to include a copy of 
the original design information.  If significant changes to 
the site layout and/or site stormwater controls has occurred, 
the County may request design information be updated to 
document compliance with Georgia Stormwater 
Management Manual criteria.    
 
All stormwater control design, construction and 


maintenance shall be done in strict accordance with the County’s current ordinances and design 
standards related to post-development stormwater management.  


 



http://www.northgeorgiawater.org/stormwater�





11 Stormwater Utility Credit Manual |                    Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Appendix A – CREDIT APPLICATION FORMS 
 







Fayette County 
Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form 
 


General Customer Information 


Name  


Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Home Phone  


E-Mail Address  


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 


Property Information 


Parcel ID Number  


Parcel Street Address  


City ST ZIP Code  


Authorized Contact (if different than owner)  
 


Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application) 
 Residential Environmental Technology             No Impact Parcel 


 Pond  Natural Area Preservation 


 Low Impact Parcel  Unified Sizing Criteria 


Authorization 
I hereby request Fayette County to review this application for a stormwater service fee credit. I further 
authorize the County to investigate the impervious area characteristics of the above identified parcel for 
the purpose of assessment for a stormwater user fee credit. I certify that I have authority to make such 
a request and grant such authority for this property. The attached information is true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge and belief. I agree to provide corrected information should there be any change in 
the information provided herein. (This form must be signed by the account’s financially responsible person must or an officer, 
director, partner, or registered agent with authority to execute instruments for the financially responsible person of the account). 
 
 


 
Type or print applicant’s name 


 
 Title or Authority   


Applicant’s Signature  


 


Date  


 


Witness  Notary  
Notary Seal 


Fayette County Representative  Date  
Approved   Denied      


 







Fayette County 
Residential Environmental Technology Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Environmental Technology to be utilized 


 Cistern(s)  Vegetated (Green) Roof 


 Rain garden(s)  Other: _____________________ 


 Pervious Pavement  


 Bioretention Area(s)  


Submittal Requirements 
 


 Site Plan  


 Structural Design  


 Maintenance Schedule  


 Installation Date: _________________________  


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


        
Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
Approval: 
 


  


   


Fayette County Representative  Date 


 







Fayette County 
No and Low-Impact Parcel Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Parcel Acreage: ___________ 


 Impervious Area: __________ 


 Percent Imperviousness: __________ 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 


  


Staff Use Only 


Credit Amount:                     


 10% Credit   15% Credit            20% Credit           25% Credit  90% Credit 
          


Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Fayette County Representative  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Residential Pond Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Submittal Requirements 


 Pond Build Date: ___________ 
(With supporting documentation) 


 Parcel Acreage: ___________ 


 Impervious Area: __________ 


 Pond Surface Area: _________ 
(With supporting documentation) 


 


 


 


 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 


  


Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Fayette County Representative  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Natural Area Preservation Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Type of Natural Area for Preservation 


 Undeveloped land in its natural state 


 Federally recognized wetlands (must include documentation) 


 Lands containing Federally Endangered Species (must include documentation) 


 Undeveloped lands within stream buffers and/or floodplains 


 Constructed stormwater wetlands (must include documentation) 


 Zoning Buffer 


 Other: ________________________________________________ 


Submittal Requirements 


 Map showing area in conservation 


 Amount of area in preservation 


 Documentation submitted to the Clerk’s Office or agency 


 Page Book: __________      Page Number: __________  (if applicable) 


 


 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Fayette County Representative  Date 


 







Fayette County 
Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria Application Form 
 


General Information 


Stormwater Utility Account Number  
 
 


Type Sizing Criteria 


 Water Quality 


 Channel Protection 


 Overbank Flood Protection 


 Extreme Flood Protection 


Submittal Requirements 


 Site Plan 


 Hydrology Study 


 Inspection and Maintenance Plan 


 Installation and Maintenance Date: __________________________   


 


 
       


Type or print name  Title or Authority 


 
Signature  Date 


 
Staff Use Only 


Credit Amount:                     


 10% Credit   20% Credit            30% Credit           40% Credit   
         


 
Approval: 
 
 


  


   
Fayette County Representative  Date 


 







 


 


 


Proposed 


Rate Schedule 


 







Fayette County Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule 


 


The Fayette County Stormwater Utility Rate Schedule establishes the basis for calculating the 


stormwater user fee rate for developed property within the County.  The below rate schedule was 


contained in the Stormwater Management Ordinance, Article IV, Chapter 19 adopted by the 


Board of Commissioners on September 22, 2011.  The County shall assign the amount of 


impervious area for the fair, reasonable and equitable allocation of the costs to deliver 


stormwater services and shall use this assignment to calculate the stormwater user fee charges for 


all developed properties in unincorporated Fayette County. 


User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 1,000 square feet of impervious 


area located on the property to establish the total number of billing units. The total square 


footage impervious area will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000 ft. increment.  (Example.   A 


property with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall contain 1 equivalent runoff unit and a 


property with less than 1,000 square feet of impervious area shall contain 0 equivalent runoff  


unit.) 


Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent runoff units, because of the 


hydrologic response characteristics of these materials.  (Example.  A property with 2,000 square 


feet of gravel area shall be equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to 1 equivalent 


runoff unit.) 


Calculation of Rate.  


The periodic stormwater user fee charges imposed on all developed properties shall be a rate of 


$0.35 per 1 equivalent runoff unit. 





		Environmental Management- Sto...ility Agenda Request File

		Environmental Management- Stormwater Utility Backup

		Cover Sheet- Red-Lined Ordinance

		June 16, 2014 Redline-Vanessa Version

		Cover Sheet- Proposed Ordinance Final Form

		June 16, 2014 Revision, Clean

		Cover Sheet- Credit Manual

		SW Utility Credit Manual Update 6-25

		SW Utility Credit  Manual update 6-17-2014

		// SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

		SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS

		User Fee.  A fee charged to a Developed Property for Stormwater Services.  The User Fee is a function of the rate schedule applied to the Impervious Area. SECTION 3 - STORMWATER CREDIT APPLICATION PROCESS

		SECTION 4 – STORMWATER USER FEE CREDITS

		Appendix A – CREDIT APPLICATION FORMS



		1 - Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form Update 6-17-2014 Clean

		/Fayette County

		General Customer Information

		Property Information

		Credit to be applied (please include applicable forms and include with this application)



		2 - Res Enviro Tech Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form 5-30-2014

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information

		Environmental Technology to be utilized



		3 - Low-Impact Parcel Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form 5-30-2014

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements

		Staff Use Only

		Credit Amount:

		10% Credit   15% Credit            20% Credit           25% Credit  90% Credit



		General Information



		4 - Residental Pond Stormwater Utility Credit Application Form

		/Fayette County

		Submittal Requirements



		General Information



		5 - Natural Area Preservation Utility Credit Application Form 6-17-2014

		/Fayette County

		Type of Natural Area for Preservation



		General Information



		6 - Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria Utility Credit Application Form 5-30-2014

		/Fayette County

		Type Sizing Criteria

		Staff Use Only

		Credit Amount:

		10% Credit   20% Credit            30% Credit           40% Credit



		General Information





		Cover Sheet- Rate Schedule

		Rate Schedule-Vanessa Version












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Presentation of two Government Finance Officers Association Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for  


Fayette County's and Fayette County's Water System's Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 


30, 2013. 


This is the 21st consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). To 


achieve this recognition, an impartial panel of finance professionals examine the CAFR and judge compliance with the high standards set 


by GFOA. The report must demonstrate full disclosure which clearly communicates the County's financial story.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Acknowledgment Fayette County's receipt of this award.


Not Applicable.


Yes Last year 


No Yes


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, July 10, 2014



FJones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #4





































		Finance- CAFR Award Agenda Request File

		Finance- CAFR Award Backup







